#### NO. 44147-1-II

### IN THE COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION II

#### STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

v.

#### BRIAN BUCKMAN,

Appellant.

# ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON FOR LEWIS COUNTY

The Honorable Nelson Hunt, Judge

#### OPENING BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Peter B. Tiller, WSBA No. 20835 Of Attorneys for Appellant

The Tiller Law Firm Corner of Rock and Pine P. O. Box 58 Centralia, WA 98531 (360) 736-9301

# **

#### A. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- 1. The appellant was denied the effective assistance of counsel when his attorney stipulated to commisson of five alleged violations.
- 2. The court erred when it revoked appellant's suspended sentence under the Special Sex Offender Sentencing Alternative.

#### B. ISSUE PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. Was the appellant denied the effective assistance of counsel under Washington Constitution, Article 1, § 22 and United States Constitution, Sixth Amendment when his trial counsel stipulated to the alleged violations? Assignments of Error 1 and 2.

#### C. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Brian Buckman was charged by information filed in Lewis County Superior Court with one count of rape of a child in the second degree. Clerk's Papers (CP) 1-3. On January 26, 2012, Mr. Buckman entered a plea of guilty as charged. CP 4-14. Counsel moved for an examination pursuant to the Special Sex Offender Sentencing Alternative to determine amenability to treatment. CP 15-16. The matter came on for sentencing before the Honorable Nelson Hunt on March 7, 2012. Report of Proceedings (RP)

(3/7/12) at 5-17.<sup>1</sup> Defense counsel recommended a Special Sex Offender Offender Sentencing Alternative (SSOSA). RP (3/7/12) at 9. The State objected to SSOSA. RP (3/7/12) at 8. The court accepted the recommendation for SSOSA and sentenced Mr. Buckman to a maximum term of life in prison, with a minimum term of 114 months, suspended on condition that he spend six months in custody. RP (3/7/12) at 15; CP 24-37. His standard range sentence was 86 to 114 months. CP 71.

The court imposed a number of community placement conditions as part of the SSOSA sentence. CP 36. These conditions included (1) that he report to his assigned Community Corrections Officer as directed; (2) that he not consume controlled substances; (3) that he follow treatment recommendations in sexual deviancy therapy; and (4) that he does not have contact with K.B.S. CP 36.

On September 11, 2012, the State moved to revoke the SSOSA program. CP 41-45. (Motion for an Order Modifying Sentence, Revoking SSOSA and Re-Sentencing Within the Standard Range.) The prosecution alleged that Mr. Buckman had violated the conditions of the judgment and

-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The record of proceedings consists of four volumes:

RP (3/7/12), sentencing hearing;

RP (9/13/12), hearing;

RP (10/10/12), revocation hearing; and

sentence by failing to report to his Community Corrections Officer. CP 41-45. The State filed a supplemental petition to revoke SSOSA on October 3, 2012, alleging that Mr. Buckman (1) had contact with K.B.S. in person on September 4, attempted contact through a third party with text messages on September 7, and attempted contact through a third party by telephone on September 9, 2012; (2) sold heroin to a confidential informant; (3) failed to register as sex offender; and (4) admitted to law enforcement that he used heroin after his release from custody. CP 46-67. (Supplemental Petition to Revoke Special Sex Offender Sentencing Alternative Pursuant to RCW 9.94A.670(11)).

At a revocation hearing on October 10, 2012, Mr. Buckman, through his attorney, stipulated that he had committed each of the five allegations. RP (10/10/12) at 3. Defense counsel argued that Mr. Buckman was "young and stupid," that he thought the Department of Corrections or his attorney was supposed to set things up for his treatment, and that he was "begging for a second chance to get things done." RP (10/10/12) at 7, 8.

The court found the violations occurred and revoked SSOSA and reimposed the sentence of 114 months. RP(10/10/12) at 10, 11. An order of

RP (10/11/12) formal entry.

revocation and judgment and sentence were entered October 11, 2012. CP 69-83, 100-101. The order stated that the court found the following violations:

- 1. Failing to report to the Department of Corrections as directed and required by the SSOSA sentence since July 16, 2012.
- 2. Contacting the victim in this case on September 4, 2012 and attempting to have contact with the victim on September 7 and 9, 2012.
- 3. Selling \$40.00 worth of heroin to a confidential informant during the week of September 3, 2012.
- 4. Failing to properly register as a sex offender since being released from custody on July 11, 2012.
- 5. Using heroin since being released from custody on July 11, 2012.

CP 101.

Timely notice of appeal was filed November 8, 2012. CP 84-101. This appeal follows.

#### D. ARGUMENT

# 1. MR. BUCKMAN WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL.

Under the Sixth Amendment and Article I, Section 22 of the Washington State Constitution, a criminal defendant is guaranteed the right to the effective assistance of counsel at every critical stage of the proceeding. *United States v. Cronic*, 466 U.S. 648, 658-59, 104 S. Ct. 2039, 80 L. Ed. 2d

657 (1984); *In re Davis*, 152 Wn.2d 647, 672, 101 P.3d 1 (2004); *State v. Roberts*, 142 Wn.2d 471, 515, 14 P.3d 713 (2000). Critical stages are those steps of the proceeding that hold significant consequences for the accused. *Bell v. Cone*, 535 U.S. 685, 695-96, 122 S. Ct. 1843, 152 L. Ed.2d 914 (2002). Sentencing is a critical stage. *State v. Everybodytalksabout*, 131 Wn. App. 227, 236, 126 P.3d 87 (2006); *State v. Robinson*, 153 Wn.2d 689, 694, 107 P.3d 90 (2005).

SSOSA revocation hearings are a form of sentencing because they can result in a modification to a defendant's sentence, as occurred here. SSOSA revocation hearings also hold significant consequences for the accused because they have the potential to result in the defendant being moved from community custody into total confinement. RCW 9.94A.670(10). As such, a defendant is entitled to effective assistance of counsel at a SSOSA revocation hearing.

Here, to the extent Mr. Buckman is precluded from challenging the sufficiency of State's allegation and evidence as to violations because his trial counsel admitted the violations, Mr. Buckman's counsel was ineffective. Therefore, this Court should reverse the revocation order and remand for a new revocation hearing.

The standard of review for an assertion of ineffective assistance of counsel involves a two-prong test. *State v. Thomas*, 109 Wn.2d 222, 225-26, 743 P.2d 816 (1987) (quoting *Strickland v. Washington*, 466 U.S. 668, 80 L. Ed. 2d 674, 104 S. Ct. 2052 (1984)). First, the defendant must show counsel's performance was deficient. *Thomas*, 109 Wn.2d at 225. Second, the defendant must show the deficient performance prejudiced the defense. *Id.* at 225-26.

To satisfy the first prong, the defendant must show counsel's performance fell below an objective standard of reasonableness. *State v. McNeal*, 145 Wn.2d 352, 362, 37 P.3d 280 (2002); *Strickland*, 466 U.S. at 688.

To satisfy the second prong, the defendant must show a reasonable probability that but for counsel's performance, the result would have been different. *McNeal*, 145 Wn.2d at 362; *Strickland*, 466 U.S. at 694. A reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome. *Strickland*, 466 U.S. at 694. The defendant need not show that counsel's deficient performance more likely than not altered the outcome. *Id*. at 693.

Under RCW 9.94A.670(11), the trial court may revoke a SSOSA sentence at any time during the period of community custody and order execution of the sentence if (1) the defendant violates the conditions of his suspended sentence; or (2) the court finds that the defendant is failing to make satisfactory progress in treatment. The court retains its discretion, however, to sanction a violation other than by revocation of the SSOSA. State v. Kistner, 105 Wn. App. 967, 972 n.9, 21 P.3d 719 (2001). Under RCW 9.94B.040, the court may instead impose a number of other sanctions, including: 60 days of confinement for each violation, work release, home detention with electronic monitoring, work crew, community restitution, inpatient treatment, daily reporting, curfew, educational or counseling sessions, supervision enhanced through electronic monitoring, jail time, or other sanctions available in the community. The State bears the burden of proving a defendant's noncompliance by a preponderance of the evidence. State v. Woodward, 116 Wn. App. 697, 67 P.3d 530 (2003); RCW 9.94B.040(3)(c).

In this case, Mr. Buckman was denied the effective assistance of counsel at his revocation hearing. Defense counsel stipulated to the violations, and did not advocate for a sixty day sentence for each violation or

other sanction as authorized by RCW 9.94B.040. RP (10/10/12) at 7-8. Instead, counsel resorted to "begging for one more chance" on the amorphous grounds that his client was "young and stupid," rather than either challenging the violations directly or asking for a sixty day sentence for each offense or other sanction short of revocation. RP (10/10/12) at 7-8.

Defense counsel's conduct was unreasonable. A defendant facing a revocation of a suspended sentence always has the right to contest evidence or to seek mitigation. *See, e.g., Seattle v. Lea*, 56 Wn. App. 859 at 860-861, 786 P.2d 798 (1990). Even where the worst possible outcome seems likely, a defendant may have some hope of gaining some improvement in his situation. However, essentially conceding to the maximum penalty by not contesting the allegations or presenting mitigating evidence forecloses the possibility of improving circumstances to any degree.

Mr. Buckman was prejudiced by his attorney's deficient performance. First, by conceding to the allegations, Mr. Buckman lost all opportunity to seek any concession from the prosecution (such as a recommendation to modify the suspended sentence by lowering his minimum term). Second, Mr. Buckman did not ask the court to mitigate the penalty in any way—either by imposing additional time in jail without revoking the suspended sentence, or

lowering his minimum term. When Mr. Buckman's counsel conceded to the five allegations and did not argue for mitigation, he received no benefit whatsoever. RP (10/10/12) at 7-8.

Mr. Buckman had significant grounds to request a sixty day sanction. He apparently suffers from a drug addiction, as demonstrated by his alleged use and sale of heroin. Counsel could have easily obtained a drug evaluation and psychological evaluation to determine what role, if any, Mr. Buckman's drug addiction played in failing to comply with his conditions of community placement. Counsel could have presented such evidence in support of a request for sanctions not resulting in revocation.

For these reasons, the revocation order must be reversed, Mr. Buckman's suspended sentence must be re-instated, and the case must be remanded to the superior court for a new hearing on the State's motion to revoke.

#### E. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Mr. Buckman's revocation order must be reversed, his prison term re-suspended, and his case remanded to the superior court.