No. 44147-1-II

THE COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION II

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

VS.

BRIAN BUCKMAN,

Appellant.

Appeal from the Superior Court of Washington for Lewis County

Respondent's Brief

JONATHAN L. MEYER Lewis County Prosecuting Attorney

By:

SARA I. BEIGH, WSBA No. 35564 Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

Lewis County Prosecutor's Office 345 W. Main Street, 2nd Floor Chehalis, WA 98532-1900 (360) 740-1240

II.	STATEMENT OF THE CASE					
III.	ARC	GUME	ENT	.5		
	A.	FRC	CKMAN RECEIVED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF THE MIS ATTORNEY THROUGHOUT HIS SSOSA COCATION HEARING	.5		
		1.	Standard Of Review	.6		
		2.	Buckman's Attorney Was Not Ineffective During H Representation Of Buckman At The SSOSA Revocation Hearing			
		3.	If Buckman's Attorney Is Found To Be Deficient Buckman Has Not Met His Burden To Show That He Was Prejudiced By The Deficient Performance Of His Attorney			
IV.	CO	NCLU	JSION	12		

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Washington Cases

Washington Statutes

RCW 9.94A670(11)7

I. ISSUE

A. Was Buckman's attorney ineffective in his representation of Buckman during the SSOSA revocation hearing?

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Brian Buckman was charged by information on November 1, 2011 with Rape of a Child in the Second Degree. CP 1-3. The information alleged the rape took place on or about and between May 1, 2010 and September 30, 2010. CP 1. The State received a report from the Winlock Police Department that on October 25, 2011 Chief Williams and Social Worker Roni Jensen had met with KBS¹ at Winlock High School to discuss KBS's relationship with Buckman, Supp. CP PC Aff. KBS was fourteen years old, with a date of birth of November 8, 1996. Supp. CP PC Aff. KBS disclosed that she was the current girlfriend of Buckman. Supp. CP PC Aff. Buckman's date of birth is November 19, 1992, making him three years and 11 months older than KBS. CP 3; Supp CP PC Aff. KBS disclosed that she and Buckman had a sexual relationship and the first time KBS and Buckman had intercourse was in June 2010 when she was 13 years old. Supp. CP PC Aff.

¹ The State will refer to the victim by her initials, KBS, to protect her identity.

² State will be filing a supplemental designation of Clerk's papers to include the affidavit regarding probable cause.

On January 26, 2012 Buckman pleaded guilty as charged to one count of Rape of a Child in the Second Degree. CP 4-14. Buckman's attorney submitted a motion for Special Sex Offender Sentencing Alternative (SSOSA) examination. CP 15-16. The judge signed the order for the SSOSA examination on January 31, 2012. CP 19-20.

Buckman was sentenced on March 7, 2012. RP (3/7/12) 1-20; CP 24-37. The State opposed the imposition of a SSOSA sentence and asked the sentencing court to impose a sentence in the middle of the standard range. RP 5, 8. A standard range for Buckman was a minimum of 86 to 114 months in prison with a maximum of life in prison. RP 5, 8. Buckman's attorney asked the sentencing court to allow Buckman to do a SSOSA. RP 9. The judge granted Buckman's request for a SSOSA. RP 15; CP 24-37. As part of the SSOSA sentence the sentencing judge imposed a number of restrictions and conditions on Buckman. RP 15-18; CP 27-37. Buckman was required to serve six months in the Lewis County Jail. CP 27. If Buckman did not successfully complete the SSOSA and it was revoked he was to serve 114 months minimum. term in prison. CP 27. Buckman was required to be on community custody and abide by his community custody conditions including, outpatient sexual deviancy treatment, no criminal law violations, no contact with the victim for life, register as a sex offender and all the additional requirements of community custody listed in Appendix H of his judgment and sentence. CP 27-37.

On March 26, 2012 Buckman signed the Department of Corrections (DOC) Conditions, Requirements, and Instructions form acknowledging his community custody requirements. CP 38. One of Buckman's requirements was to report as directed to DOC. CP 38. Buckman was released from the Lewis County Jail on July 11, 2012. CP 38. Buckman phoned his Community Corrections Officer (CCO) on July 12, 2012 and was instructed to report that day to his CCO. CP 38. Buckman failed to report as directed but did report on July 16, 2012. CP 38. Buckman failed to report on his next scheduled report date of August 2, 2012. CP 39. CCO Colleran attempted to contact Buckman on August 3, 2012 but was unable to reach him. CP 39. Buckman eventually reported on August 6, 2012 but failed to report again on August 11, 2012. CP 39. Buckman's CCO completed a violation report on August 15, 2012 after having no contact with Buckman since August 6, 2012. CP 39. At that time the CCO was requesting 30 days confinement as a sanction for failing to report as directed. CP 39.

On September 11, 2012 the State filed a motion for an order modifying sentence, revoking the SSOSA, and resentencing

Buckman within the standard range. CP 41-45. The State attached CCO Colleran's report from August as the basis for the motion. CP 41-45.

On October 3, 2012 the State filed a supplemental petition to revoke Buckman's SSOSA. CP 46-67. The State alleged that Buckman had contacted KBS in person on September 4, 2012 and attempted to make contact with her by third party on September 7th and 9th, 2012. CP 47, 50-58. These contacts violated the provisions of the judgment and sentence, Buckman's conditions of community custody, and the Sexual Assault Protection Order, which would also make each contact a crime. CP 47. The State alleged Buckman sold heroin to a confidential informant during the week of September 3, 2012. CP 47, 60-63. Next, the State alleged Buckman failed to properly register as a sex offender. CP 47, 65-67. Finally, the State alleged that Buckman had made admissions during phone calls in the jail and to law enforcement that he continued to use heroin. CP 47. The State again requested Buckman's SSOSA be revoked and he be sentenced within the standard range. RP 48.

A SSOSA revocation hearing was held on October 10, 2012. RP (10/10/12) 1-12. Buckman admitted to the violations. RP (10/10/12) 3-5. Buckman and his attorney asked the sentencing

judge to give Buckman a second chance and allow Buckman to continue with his SSOSA. RP (10/10/12) 7-10. The State argued Buckman's SSOSA should be revoked. RP (10/10/12) 5-7. The sentencing judge agreed with the State and revoked Buckman's SSOSA and sentenced Buckman to 114 months minimum term to life in prison. RP (10/10/12) 11; CP 69-83. Buckman timely appeals his revocation and sentence. CP 84-101.

The State will further supplement the facts as needed throughout its argument.

III. ARGUMENT

A. BUCKMAN RECEIVED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE FROM HIS ATTORNEY THROUGHOUT HIS SSOSA REVOCATION HEARING.

Buckman's attorney provided competent and effective legal counsel throughout the course of his representation. Buckman asserts his attorney was ineffective for failing to challenge the State's allegations during the SSOSA revocation hearing. Brief of Appellant 5, 7-9. Buckman argues his attorney was deficient for having Buckman admit the allegations and/or failing to argue that a 60 day sanction was the appropriate penalty. Brief of Appellant 7-9. Buckman also finds fault with what he argues is his attorney's lack of presenting mitigating factors in support of his request that the sentencing judge not revoke the SSOSA. Brief of Appellant 7-9.

Buckman's assertion that his attorney was ineffective is false. If, this Court were to find Buckman's attorney's performance was deficient, Buckman has not shown that he was prejudiced by his attorney's conduct and his ineffective assistance claim therefore fails.

1. Standard Of Review.

A claim of ineffective assistance of counsel brought on a direct appeal confines the reviewing court to the record on appeal and extrinsic evidence outside the trial record will not be considered. *State v. McFarland*, 127 Wn.2d 322, 335, 899 P.2d 1251 (1995) (citations omitted).

2. Buckman's Attorney Was Not Ineffective During His Representation Of Buckman At The SSOSA Revocation Hearing.

To prevail on an ineffective assistance of counsel claim Buckman must show that (1) the attorney's performance was deficient and (2) the deficient performance prejudiced the defense. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 80 L. Ed. 674 (1984); State v. Reichenbach, 153 Wn.2d 126, 130, 101 P.3d 80 (2004). The presumption is that the attorney's conduct was not deficient. Reichenbach, 153 Wn.2d at 130, citing State v. McFarland, 127 Wn.2d at 335. Deficient performance exists only if counsel's actions were "outside the wide range of professionally

competent assistance." *Strickland*, 466 U.S. at 690. The court must evaluate whether given all the facts and circumstances the assistance given was reasonable. *Id.* at 688. There is a sufficient basis to rebut the presumption that an attorney's conduct is not deficient "where there is no conceivable legitimate tactic explaining counsel's performance." *Reichenbach*, 153 Wn.2d at 130.

If counsel's performance is found to be deficient, then the only remaining question for the reviewing court is whether the defendant was prejudiced. *State v. Horton*, 116 Wn. App. 909, 921, 68 P.3d 1145 (2003). Prejudice "requires 'a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different." *State v. Horton*, 116 Wn. App. at 921-22, *citing Strickland v. Washington*, 466 U.S. at 694.

The sentencing court may revoke a SSOSA suspended sentence at any time during the period of community custody if the court is reasonably satisfied that the defendant has violated a condition of his or her suspended sentence or failed to make satisfactory progress in their required treatment program. RCW 9.94A670(11). The sentencing court does retain its discretion to sanction the defendant rather than revoke the SSOSA sentence if it deems the sanction to be the appropriate remedy. *State v. Partee*, 141 Wn. App. 355, 362, 170 P.3d 60 (2007). A defendant facing

revocation of his or her SSOSA has only minimal due process rights. *State v. Dahl*, 139 Wn.2d 678, 683, 990 P.2d 396 (1999). A defendant is entitled to the same due process rights afforded defendant's during the revocation of parole or probation. *Dahl*, 139 Wn.2d at 683. In a SSOSA revocation hearing the State's burden of proof is merely to reasonably satisfy the sentencing judge that a condition of the suspended sentence was violated. *State v. Badger*, 64 Wn. App. 904, 908, 827 P.2d 318 (1992).

In a trial setting, if an attorney's conduct can be characterized as legitimate tactics or trial strategy the attorney's performance is not deficient. *State v. Grier*, 171 Wn.2d 17, 33, 246 P.3d 1260 (2011). If an attorney's actions are trial tactics or the theory of the case the reviewing court will not find ineffective assistance of counsel. *Grier*, 171 Wn.2d at 33. A "defendant can rebut the presumption of reasonableness by demonstrating that there is no conceivable legitimate tactic explaining counsel's performance. " *Id.* (internal quotations and citations omitted).

The State had a number of allegations and documentation to support the allegations against Buckman for violating the conditions of his SSOSA suspended sentence. CP 41-67. The State alleged:

1. Buckman failed to report to Department of Corrections as directed on August 16, 2012.

- 2. Buckman contacted KBS in the case in person on September 4, 2012, attempted to contact KBS through a third party via text message on September 7, 2012, and attempted to contact her through a third party via telephone on September 9, 2012. Each incident constituted a violation of the Sexual Assault Protection Order.
- 3. Buckman sold 40 dollars' worth of heroin to a confidential informant.
- 4. Buckman failed to properly register as a sex offender with the Lewis County Sheriff's Office.
- 5. Buckman made admissions in jail calls and to law enforcement to using heroin.

CP 43, 47. The State filed supporting documentation, including the CCO Colleran's report and police reports detailing the factual allegations. CP 43-44, 50-67. The State filed a witness list for the SSOSA revocation hearing which included the necessary people to establish the violations. Supp. CP Witness List.³ The State was recommending Buckman's SSOSA be revoked and he be sentenced within the standard range. CP 48.

Buckman's attorney understood how strong the State's evidence was in regards to proving the alleged violations. It is clear from the record that Buckman's trial attorney used a tactical and strategic decision to have Buckman admit to the violations. RP (10/10/12) 2-3, 7-8. It was highly likely the trial court, after a

³ The State will be filing a Supplement Designation of Clerk's papers to include the State's Witness List for the SSOSA revocation hearing.

contested hearing, would have found all of the violations committed. See CP 41-67; Supp. CP Witness List. It is also highly unlikely after a contested hearing the sentencing court would have entertained not revoking the SSOSA. See RP (10/10/12) 10-11. Buckman's counsel recognized this and tactically decided the only possible hope of staying on the SSOSA was by accepting responsibility and admitting the violations. RP (10/10/12) 2-5, 7-10. It was a tactical decision to attempt to explain to the sentencing court that Buckman's youth and poor decisions, "young and stupid," were what led to the violations and given an appropriate chance to correct his behavior Buckman could be successful in his SSOSA sentence. RP (10/10/12) 7-10. In essence Buckman was throwing himself on the mercy of the court, hoping for a second shot. Buckman's attorney stated,

If the Court is willing to give him a second chance, the day he gets out, his mother will take him up there [Pacific Psychological] to get him signed up for the classes, get him back in touch with the Department of Corrections. So he is begging the Court for one more chance.

RP (10/10/12) 8. While Buckman's attorney may have not directly asked for Buckman to be sanctioned with time in jail that is the implied request being made by counsel. RP (10/10/12) 8.

Buckman's attorney attempted to keep the trial court from revoking Buckman's SSOSA sentence with the only option available due to the overwhelming evidence the State had available for the revocation hearing, take responsibility and beg for a second chance. Buckman received effective assistance from his attorney and his conviction should be affirmed.

3. If Buckman's Attorney Is Found To Be Deficient Buckman Has Not Met His Burden To Show That He Was Prejudiced By The Deficient Performance Of His Attorney.

The State maintains that Buckman's attorney's performance was not deficient, arguendo, if this Court were to find Buckman's attorney's performance deficient; Buckman has not met his burden to show he was prejudiced. Buckman must show that, but for his attorney's error in having him admit to the violations, the court would not have revoked the SSOSA. *See Horton*, 116 Wn. App. at 921-22.

Buckman has not met his burden of showing that absent his attorney's errors it is highly likely that the court would have allowed Buckman a second chance and not revoked the SSOSA. The superior court has the discretion to either impose confinement or revoke a SSOSA sentence if there is a violation of the sentence.

Partee, 141 Wn. App. at 362. When making his ruling the judge stated.

[T]he young and stupid argument does not work with me on this one, so I am revoking the SSOSA. And I'm doing it because I can't imagine any other wake-up call than facing 114 months to life imprisonment. And if that wasn't enough to get you to comply, nothing will. And if I were to turn around and say, oh, after you have done not only nothing, but positively violated a whole series of prohibitions, several of which would be new crimes if they were prosecuted, anyone would be put back on this program...

RP (1/10/12) 10-11. The sentencing court would have revoked Buckman's SOSSA regardless of what Buckman's attorney argued. Buckman has not met his burden to show prejudice and this Court should affirm his conviction.

V. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

This Court should find Buckman's attorney was not ineffective and affirm the revocation of his SSOSA and the standard range sentence ordered by the sentencing court.

RESPECTFULLY submitted this 25th day of June, 2013.

JONATHAN L. MEYER Lewis County Prosecuting Attorney

by:

SARA I. BEIGH, WSBA 35564

Attorney for Plaintiff

LEWIS COUNTY PROSECUTOR

June 26, 2013 - 9:18 AM

Transmittal Letter

Document Uploaded: 441471-Respondent's Brief.pdf

State of Washington vs. Brian W. Buckman Case Name:

Court of Appeals Case Number: 44147-1

Is t

The

this a	Yes 🝙	ì	No						
document being Filed is:									
[Designation of Clerk's Papers	Suppleme	ent	tal Designation of Clerk's Papers					
9	Statement of Arrangements								
ľ	Motion:								
A	Answer/Reply to Motion:								
⊕ E	Brief: Respondent's Statement of Additional Authorities Cost Bill								
9									
(
C	Objection to Cost Bill								
A	Affidavit								
L	Letter								
	Copy of Verbatim Report of Proceedings - No. of Volumes: Hearing Date(s):								
F	Personal Restraint Petition (PRP)								
F	Response to Personal Restraint Petition								
F	Reply to Response to Personal Restraint Petition								
F	Petition for Review (PRV)								
(Other:								
Comments:									
No Comments were entered.									
Sender Name: Teresa L Bryant - Email: teri.bryant@lewiscountywa.gov									
A copy of this document has been emailed to the following addresses:									

SLong@Tillerlaw.com PTiller@Tillerlaw.com